
RIVER PLANTATION MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING

Notice is hereby given to all interested members of the public that the Board of
Directors of the captioned district will hold a public meeting at 610 River Plantation Drive,
Conroe, Texas 77302.

The meeting will be held at 6:30 p.m. on Thursday, August 22,2024.

The subject of the meeting is to consider and act on the following:

1. Minutes of the meeting(s) of Board of Directors

2. Receive comments from the Public

3. Financial and bookkeeping matters including:

a. Bookkeeper's report

b. Tax Assessor-Collectors' report

c. Review of investments

d. Payment of District bills

4. Violation of District rules; Public hearing for violation of District rules and
damage to District property; assessment of penalties

5. Park maintenance matters

6. Contract with All Seasons Lawn Maintenance

7. Operator's Report

8. Engineer's Report

9. Review Truth in Taxation Calculations for 2024 Tax Rate;

10. Adopt Resolution (1) Finding District to be Low Tax Rate, Developed,
Developing, or Developed District in a Declared Disaster Area, (2) Calling Public
Hearing on 2024 Tax Rate and (3) Authorizing Tax Assessor-Collector to
Prepare and Publish Notice of the Public Hearing

11. Review draft budget for F.Y.E. 09/30/2025

12. Emergency Alert System

13. Executive (closed) Session Pursuant to Texas Government Code §§ 551.071,

551.072, and 551.076 as necessary

14. Next meeting date; Tax Rate Schedule

15. Pending business

^®^^^s^
^

S J. Da\?is Bo^iham, Jr., Attorney for the District

^'0'

09402-002 583173.1
'^.-^y

^<mt^





















































































































































































































08/01/2024 03:26:3      4603511                       TAX COLLECTION SYSTEM                                           
TC168                                                TAX COLLECTOR MONTHLY REPORT               INCLUDES AG ROLLBACK
                                                   FROM 07/01/2024 TO 07/31/2024

 FISCAL START: 10/01/2023 END: 09/30/2024  JURISDICTION: 0412 RIVER PLANTATION MUD

                 CERT TAXABLE VALUE         ADJUSTMENTS         ADJ TAX VALUE      TAX RATE          TAX LEVY            PAID ACCTS
                 ------------------        --------------       -------------    -------------     -------------        -------------

CURRENT YEAR            200,831,428           19,977,937           220,809,365  0   00.650000       1,435,447.18          1,277

                 ------------------        --------------       -------------    -------------     -------------        -------------

     -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

YEAR          TAXES DUE         MONTH ADJ    ADJUSTMENT YTD          LEVY PAID           PAID YTD            BALANCE  COLL %    YTD UNCOLL

     -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

2023       1,305,419.11          3,234.78-       130,028.07           10,954.32       1,378,197.77           57,249.41  96.01        0.00
2022          37,688.59            641.43          2,104.19-             303.04          17,357.58           18,226.82  48.78        0.00
2021           7,260.07               .00             79.00-               0.00           2,761.31            4,419.76  38.45        0.00
2020           4,311.66             80.57              0.00               80.57           1,250.33            3,061.33  29.00        0.00
2019           2,559.29               .00              0.00                0.00             509.28            2,050.01  19.90        0.00
2018           2,211.85               .00              0.00                0.00             509.28            1,702.57  23.03        0.00
2017           1,556.87               .00              0.00                0.00             140.97            1,415.90   9.05        0.00
2016           1,136.95               .00              0.00               17.26              17.26            1,119.69   1.52        0.00
2015             662.76               .00              0.00                0.00               0.00              662.76               0.00
2014             304.19               .00              0.00                0.00               0.00              304.19               0.00
2013             282.53               .00             17.60-               0.00               0.00              264.93               0.00
2012              12.80               .00              0.00                0.00               0.00               12.80               0.00
2011              16.00               .00              0.00                0.00               0.00               16.00               0.00
2010              12.40               .00              0.00                0.00               0.00               12.40               0.00
2009              12.40               .00              0.00                0.00               0.00               12.40               0.00
2008              12.44               .00              0.00                0.00               0.00               12.44               0.00
2007              12.62               .00              0.00                0.00               0.00               12.62               0.00
2006              13.54               .00              0.00                0.00               0.00               13.54               0.00
2005              18.02               .00              0.00                0.00               0.00               18.02               0.00
2004              19.24               .00              0.00                0.00               0.00               19.24               0.00
2003              67.70               .00             67.70-               0.00               0.00                0.00               0.00
2002               0.00               .00              0.00                0.00               0.00                0.00               0.00

****       1,363,591.03          2,512.78-       127,759.58           11,355.19       1,400,743.78           90,606.83               0.00

CURR       1,305,419.11          3,234.78-       130,028.07           10,954.32       1,378,197.77           57,249.41               0.00
DELQ          58,171.92            722.00          2,268.49-             400.87          22,546.01           33,357.42               0.00

PAGE: 1



08/01/2024 03:34:00       4603509                            TAX COLLECTION SYSTEM                                            
TC298-D    SELECTION: DEPOSIT                                 DEPOSIT DISTRIBUTION                          INCLUDES AG ROLLBACK
       RECEIPT DATE:  ALL                               FROM: 07/01/2024 THRU 07/31/2024
     LOCATION: ALL                                      JURISDICTION: 0412 RIVER PLANTATION MUD

                TAX              LEVY      DISCOUNT       PENALTY           TIF         DISBURSE                   OTHER         REFUND          PAYMENT
 YEAR  FUND     RATE             PAID         GIVEN      INTEREST        AMOUNT            TOTAL      ATTORNEY      FEES         AMOUNT           AMOUNT

 2023 M & O   .400000        6,741.13           .00      1,156.45           .00         7,897.58      1,156.71       .00            .00         9,054.29
      I & S   .250000        4,213.19           .00        722.77           .00         4,935.96           .00       .00            .00         4,935.96
      TOTAL   .650000       10,954.32           .00      1,879.22           .00        12,833.54      1,156.71       .00            .00        13,990.25

 2022 M & O   .270000          157.35           .00         38.05           .00           195.40         65.08       .00            .00           260.48
      I & S   .250000          145.69           .00         35.24           .00           180.93           .00       .00            .00           180.93
      TOTAL   .520000          303.04           .00         73.29           .00           376.33         65.08       .00            .00           441.41

 2020 M & O   .322300           80.57           .00           .00           .00            80.57           .00       .00            .00            80.57
      I & S   .000000             .00           .00           .00           .00              .00           .00       .00            .00              .00
      TOTAL   .322300           80.57           .00           .00           .00            80.57           .00       .00            .00            80.57

 2016 M & O   .320000           17.26           .00         17.61           .00            34.87          6.97       .00            .00            41.84
      I & S   .000000             .00           .00           .00           .00              .00           .00       .00            .00              .00
      TOTAL   .320000           17.26           .00         17.61           .00            34.87          6.97       .00            .00            41.84

 ALL  M & O                  6,996.31           .00      1,212.11           .00         8,208.42      1,228.76       .00            .00         9,437.18
 ALL  I & S                  4,358.88           .00        758.01           .00         5,116.89           .00       .00            .00         5,116.89
 ALL  TOTAL                 11,355.19           .00      1,970.12           .00        13,325.31      1,228.76       .00            .00        14,554.07

 DLQ  M & O                    255.18           .00         55.66           .00           310.84         72.05       .00            .00           382.89
 DLQ  I & S                    145.69           .00         35.24           .00           180.93           .00       .00            .00           180.93
 DLQ  TOTAL                    400.87           .00         90.90           .00           491.77         72.05       .00            .00           563.82

 CURR M & O                  6,741.13           .00      1,156.45           .00         7,897.58      1,156.71       .00            .00         9,054.29
 CURR I & S                  4,213.19           .00        722.77           .00         4,935.96           .00       .00            .00         4,935.96
 CURR TOTAL                 10,954.32           .00      1,879.22           .00        12,833.54      1,156.71       .00            .00        13,990.25

PAGE: 1



08/01/2024 03:08:52                4603509             TAX COLLECTION SYSTEM                                        
TC298-N  SELECTION: DEPOSIT                            DEPOSIT DISTRIBUTION                      INCLUDES AG ROLLBACK
                                                SUMMARY OF PAYMENTS AND REVERSALS
                                                  FROM: 07/01/2024 THRU 07/31/2024
                                           JURISDICTION:  412 RIVER PLANTATION MUD

                                          EFF                LEVY      DISCOUNT       PENALTY                                  REFUND           PAYMENT
YEAR DEPOSIT      ACCOUNT NUMBER         YR/MO               PAID         GIVEN      INTEREST      ATTORNEY CAUSE /REV         AMOUNT            AMOUNT

                  2016 TOTAL                                17.26          0.00         17.61          6.97                      0.00             41.84
                  2020 TOTAL                                80.57          0.00          0.00          0.00                      0.00             80.57
                  2022 TOTAL                               537.75          0.00        108.50         65.08                      0.00            711.33
                  2023 TOTAL                            16,520.57          0.00      1,903.60      1,156.71                      0.00         19,580.88

                  TOTAL PAYMENTS                        17,156.15          0.00      2,029.71      1,228.76                      0.00         20,414.62

                  2022 TOTAL                               234.71-         0.00         35.21-         0.00                      0.00            269.92-
                  2023 TOTAL                             5,566.25-         0.00         24.38-         0.00                      0.00          5,590.63-

                  TOTAL REVERSALS                        5,800.96-         0.00         59.59-         0.00                      0.00          5,860.55-

                  TOTAL FOR UNIT                        11,355.19          0.00      1,970.12      1,228.76                      0.00         14,554.07

PAGE: 1



Page 1

Report run on: August 7, 2024 3:43 PM

For Deposit Dates 07/01/2024 thru 07/31/2024 as of 08/01/2024

Held Funds By Deposit Date - Property Tax File

Ver: 1.39

ACTGL_TU_REMIT_DDA.rdf

Tax Unit M & O Total I & S Total Fee Total Total

Grand Total

Deposit Date TIF Levy TIF Interest



July, 2024

Connections:
Vacant: 33

REVENUE: Water LSGCD Sewer TCEQ Taps Deposits Penalty Misc. TOTAL
26,328.14$    602.35$           31,511.41$  293.91$       -$            2,750.00$     1,080.72$      9,664.99$    72,231.52$     

BILLED CONS: Residential Builder/Temp Multi-Family Irrigation STP/LS Commercial Total
8,014,000 51,000 0 271,000 0 135,000 8,471,000

 
WATER: 06/18/24 - 07/17/24 LSGCD - Well Permit
Gallons pumped from Well No.2 4,278,000 Permit Expires: 12/31/2024
Gallons pumped from Well No.3 4,752,000 Permitted Authorization: 225,868,339
Total Pumpage 9,030,000 July Withdrawal: 8,457,000
Total Gallons Billed 8,471,000 Y-T-D Withdrawal: 54,433,000
Leaks, Construction, Flushing 15,000 Amount Remaining: 171,435,339
Pumped vs. Billed 94%
Pumped vs. Accounted 94%
Leaks repaired in District 7

Bacteriological samples: 6 Good

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT
T.C.E.Q. Permit Number: WQ0010978001
Permit expiration date: January 2, 2029

July, 2024 Measured by:
Average daily flow 527,290 Permitted Daily Flow 600,000 gal.per day
Average CBOD 4.34 Permitted CBOD 10 mg/l
Average Total Suspended Solids 2.50 Permitted T.S.S. 15 mg/l
Average Ammonia Nitrogen 0.60 Permitted Ammonia Nitrogen 3 mg/l
Average PH 7.15 Permitted PH 6.00 - 9.00 STD UNIT
Average Dissolved Oxygen 7.30 Permitted Dissolved Oxygen (Min.) 6.0 mg/l
Maximum Chlorine Residual 3.79 Permitted Chlorine Maximum 4.0 mg/l
Minimum Chlorine Residual 1.00 Permitted Chlorine Minimum 1.0 mg/l
Average E. coli 4.00 Permitted E. coli 63.0 mpn/100 ml
Total Rainfall 15.40"
Sewer Treatment plant is currently operating at 88% of the permitted capacity.

Total gallons of Reuse for the month of July - 4.154 MG

Aged Receivables: Current 30 day 60 day 90 day 120 day Total
67,453.10$       (2,056.85)$           1,057.05$      736.57$          1,833.10$       69,022.97$      

MONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT FOR RIVER PLANTATION MUD

977

85%

90%

95%

100%

105%

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Water Accountability

2023

2024

0

200

400

600

800

0k - 10k 10k - 20k 20k -30k 30k -40k 40k - 50k 50k - over

# 
of

 U
se

rs

Gallons

Consumption



Form Approved OMB No. 2040-0004 expires on 07/31/2026DMR Copy of Record

EPA may make all the information submitted through this form (including all attachments) available to the public without further notice to you. Do not use this online form to submit personal information (e.g., non-business cell phone number or non-business email address), confidential business
information (CBI), or if you intend to assert a CBI claim on any of the submitted information. Pursuant to 40 CFR 2.203(a), EPA is providing you with notice that all CBI claims must be asserted at the time of submission. EPA cannot accommodate a late CBI claim to cover previously submitted information
because efforts to protect the information are not administratively practicable since it may already be disclosed to the public. Although we do not foresee a need for persons to assert a claim of CBI based on the types of information requested in this form, if persons wish to assert a CBI claim we direct
submitters to contact the  for further guidance. Please note that EPA may contact you after you submit this report for more information.NPDES eReporting Help Desk

This collection of information is approved by OMB under the Paperwork Reduction Act, 44 U.S.C. 3501 et seq. (OMB Control No. 2040-0004). Responses to this collection of information are mandatory in accordance with this permit and EPA NPDES regulations 40 CFR 122.41(l)(4)(i). An agency may not
conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to respond to, a collection of information unless it displays a currently valid OMB control number. The public reporting and recordkeeping burden for this collection of information are estimated to average 2 hours per outfall. Send comments on the Agency's
need for this information, the accuracy of the provided burden estimates and any suggested methods for minimizing respondent burden to the Regulatory Support Division Director, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (2821T), 1200 Pennsylvania Ave., NW, Washington, D.C. 20460. Include the OMB
control number in any correspondence. Do not send the completed form to this address.

Permit

Permit #: TX0025674 Permittee: RIVER PLANTATION MUD Facility: RIVER PLANTATION MUD WWTF

Major: No Permittee Address: 2727 ALLEN PKWY SUTIE 1100
HOUSTON, TX 77019

Facility Location: 623 RIVER PLANTATION DR
CONROE, TX 77302

Permitted Feature: 001
External Outfall

Discharge:  001-A
DOMESTIC FACILITY - 001

   

Report Dates & Status

Monitoring Period: From 07/01/24 to 07/31/24 DMR Due Date: 08/20/24 Status: NetDMR Validated

Considerations for Form Completion

 

Principal Executive Officer

First Name:   Title:   Telephone:  

Last Name:  

No Data Indicator (NODI)

Form NODI: --

Parameter Monitoring Location Season # Param. NODI   Quantity or Loading Quality or Concentration # of Ex. Frequency of Analysis Sample Type

Code Name Qualifier 1 Value 1 Qualifier 2 Value 2 Units Qualifier 1 Value 1 Qualifier 2 Value 2 Qualifier 3 Value 3 Units

00300 Oxygen, dissolved [DO] 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample           = 7.3         19 - mg/L

0

01/07 - Weekly GR - GRAB

Permit Req.           >= 6.0 MO MIN         19 - mg/L 01/07 - Weekly GR - GRAB

Value NODI                            

00400 pH 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample           = 7.0     = 7.3 12 - SU

0

02/30 - Twice Per Month GR - GRAB

Permit Req.           >= 6.0 MINIMUM     <= 9.0 MAXIMUM 12 - SU 02/30 - Twice Per Month GR - GRAB

Value NODI                            

00530 Solids, total suspended 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample = 7.71     26 - lb/d     = 2.5 = 5.1 19 - mg/L

0

01/07 - Weekly CP - COMPOS

Permit Req. <= 75.0 DAILY AV     26 - lb/d     <= 15.0 DAILY AV <= 40.0 DAILY MX 19 - mg/L 01/07 - Weekly CP - COMPOS

Value NODI                            

00610 Nitrogen, ammonia total [as N] 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample = 1.39     26 - lb/d     = 0.6 = 1.1 19 - mg/L

0

01/07 - Weekly CP - COMPOS

Permit Req. <= 15.0 DAILY AV     26 - lb/d     <= 3.0 DAILY AV <= 10.0 DAILY MX 19 - mg/L 01/07 - Weekly CP - COMPOS

Value NODI                            

50050 Flow, in conduit or thru treatment plant 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample = 0.52729 = 1.163 03 - MGD              

0

99/99 - Continuous TM - TOTALZ

Permit Req. <= 0.6 DAILY AV   Req Mon DAILY MX 03 - MGD               99/99 - Continuous TM - TOTALZ

Value NODI                            

50060 Chlorine, total residual 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample           = 1.0     = 3.79 19 - mg/L

0

01/01 - Daily GR - GRAB

Permit Req.           >= 1.0 MO MIN     <= 4.0 MO MAX 19 - mg/L 01/01 - Daily GR - GRAB

Value NODI                            

51040 E. coli 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample               = 4.0 = 18.0 30 - MPN/100mL

0

02/30 - Twice Per Month GR - GRAB

Permit Req.               <= 63.0 DAILY AV <= 200.0 DAILY MX 30 - MPN/100mL 02/30 - Twice Per Month GR - GRAB

Value NODI                            

80082 BOD, carbonaceous [5 day, 20 C] 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample = 12.2     26 - lb/d     = 4.34 = 7.4 19 - mg/L

0

01/07 - Weekly CP - COMPOS

Permit Req. <= 50.0 DAILY AV     26 - lb/d     <= 10.0 DAILY AV <= 25.0 DAILY MX 19 - mg/L 01/07 - Weekly CP - COMPOS

Value NODI                            

Submission Note

If a parameter row does not contain any values for the Sample nor Effluent Trading, then none of the following fields will be submitted for that row: Units, Number of Excursions, Frequency of Analysis, and Sample Type.

Edit Check Errors

No errors.



 

RIVER PLANTATION MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

ENGINEER’S REPORT 

VSE Project No. 32000-000-0-DST 

August 22, 2024, 6:30 p.m. 

 

Engineering Representative:   Taylor J. Reed, P.E. 

 

Directors:   Julie Gilmer, President 

  Tim Goodman, Vice President 

  Tom Vandever, Treasurer 

Karl Sakocius, Secretary 

Mark Denham, Asst. Secretary 

 

 

08.  Items for Discussion: 
 

I. Permits 
 

A. WWTF Discharge Permit Renewal (Expires September 2028) 

1. No update 
 

B. Storm Water Quality Management Plan – MS4 Permit (Expires January 

2024) 

1. Permit for the 2019 submittal was issued on 8/15/2024. We have 180 
days to renew permit coverage. We are requesting a formal proposal 
from Storm Water Solutions, LLC who handles this for all of our other 
Districts.  
 

C. Water Plant No. 1 – Water Well No. 1 Testing 

1. Testing and Inspection due January 12, 2026 
 

D. Emergency Operation Information 

1. Update as necessary. 
 



River Plantation MUD 

Engineer’s Report 

August 22, 2024 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 

 

II. Design Projects 

A. Joint Projects 

1. East Ditch FEMA Work 

a) FEMA sent back the corrections and requested clarification. We 
have provided response and will be executing the agreement 
soon.  

b) Design underway.  

2. East Ditch Maintenance (No Update) 

a) I relayed the information to All Seasons and requested they 
perform the work to satisfy the board and notify us when the 
work was being performed so we could witness it.  

3. WWTP Rehabilitation and Electrical Upgrades 

a) Construction underway. Contractor has been working on 
laying all of the conduit for the new electrical wires.  

b) Contractor provided a price of $17,250 to redo the exterior of 
the existing blower/motor control center building for the 
board to consider.  

c) Attached is Change Order No. 1 for execution that was 
approved last month.  

d) Attached is Pay Application No. 1 in the amount of $117,225.00 
that we recommend payment.  

4. Holly Springs Drainage Issue 

a) Project is substantially complete. We are holding an inspection 
Thursday at 2pm to walk the site with the contractor and 
residents.  

 

B. District Projects 

1. Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Phase 2 

a) Construction underway. No pay application this month 

2. Charleston Park Irrigation Maintenance 

a) Receive and reviewed the report. 

3. Storm Sewer Phase 1 Rehabilitation 

a) Construction substantially complete. Contractor has installed 
the fence around the open junction box. We are waiting on the 
seeding of the disturbed areas within Charleston Park. We will 
present the final pay application at the September meeting.    

 



River Plantation MUD 

Engineer’s Report 

August 22, 2024 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 

 

4. Water Plant No. 2 Electrical Upgrades 

a) Construction underway. Has received the equipment and will 
be remobilizing within the next two weeks. They anticipate 
completing the project by mid-November.    

5. Plantation Village Drainage Improvements 

a) Plans will be submitted 7/25/2024 to Montgomery County 
Engineering Department (60-day review) and the CIA 
approved it during the August meeting. We received bids and 
will present them at the meeting.  

6. East Ditch Sinkholes 

a) Stonewall Jackson Bend – Contractor was supposed to have 
addressed the settling and restored the site. I will be inspecting 
on Thursday   

b) Fairway Oaks - Contractor was supposed to have addressed 
the settling and restored the site. I will be inspecting on 
Thursday   

7. FEMA Public Assistance for April-June Declaration 

a) Put together the operator charges and generator run times to 
submit to FEMA.  

III. Other Matters 

A. 10 Year CIP 

1. No update 

IV. Questions/Answers 
1. River Plantation Drive Sanitary Sinkhole Issues  

a) Awaiting additional bids for the work.  

2. 703 Fairway Oaks Storm Sewer Failure 

a) I received a call from a resident at the above address. I visited 
the location and inspected the area to find that the pipe 
appears to have collapsed and is causing a large sinkhole to 
form. We were prepared to do this area during the second 
phase of storm sewer repairs but are coming to the end of the 
funds we have from the first bond application. 

  



777 North Eldridge Parkway, Suite 500 

Houston, TX 77079 

713.782.0042   |    Fax 713.782.5337 

info@vs-eng.com 

vs-eng.com 

 

 
August 16, 2024 

 

River Plantation Municipal Utility District 

c/o L&S District Services, LLC 

P.O. Box 170 

Tomball, Texas 77377 

 

Attn: Tiffany Carden 

 

Re: 0.6 MGD Wastewater Treatment Facility Rehabilitation  

Within River Plantation Municipal Utility District  

Montgomery County, Texas 
VSE PROJECT NO: 32000-501-1-STP (c&e) 

 

Dear Ms. Carden: 

 

Enclosed, for your review, is Pay Application No. 1 for the referenced project. 

 

We have reviewed the pay application and recommend payment in the amount of $117,225.00 to C3 

Constructors, LLC to be paid using funds in Series 2022 Bond: WWTF Rehabilitation Phase 1. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

 

Taylor J. Reed, P.E. 

Project Manager 

Vogler & Spencer Engineering, Inc. 

Texas Registered Professional Engineering Firm No. F-148 

 

Enclosure 

 

TJR;jlb 

 

xc: C3 Constructors, LLC 

TCEQ Houston  

File  

 

 

 

R

EENIGNE LANOI
S

S

DESNEC
I

L

131437

020

mailto:info@vs-eng.com


Vogler & Spencer Engineering, Inc.

Texas Registered Engineering Firm No. F-148

777 North Eldridge Parkway     Suite 500     Houston, Texas  77079     713-782-0042     713-782-5337 (fax)

APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT

PROJECT: OWNER:

  

 1 08/16/24

PERIOD:  06/17/24 through 08/20/24

CONTRACTOR: C3 Constructors, LLC

502 W. Montgomery #515

Willis, Texas 77378

Contract Time:

Date of Contract Award 05/28/24

Notice to Proceed 06/17/24

Projected Contract Substantial Completion Date 08/11/25
 

Certificate of Substantial Completion Issued

Projected Contract Final Completion Date  
 

Total Contract Days and Approved Time Extensions 450

Contract Days to Date 64

Percent of Time Used to Date 14%

Percent of Work Completed to Date 9%

Contract Cost:

Original Contract Amount 1,495,000.00$     

Net Change Orders (See attached Change Order Summary) -$                     

Current Contract Amount 1,495,000.00$     

Work Completed to Date 130,250.00$        

Less Amount Retained (13,025.00)$        

Less Previous Payment to Contractor -$                     

AMOUNT DUE THIS PAYMENT 117,225.00$        

0.6 MGD Wastewater Treatment Facility 

Rehabilitation within River Plantation 

Municipal Utility District 

River Plantation Municipal Utility District 

c/o Smith Murdaugh Little & Bonham LLP

2727 Allen Parkway, Suite 1100

Houston, Texas 77019

VSE PROJECT NO.:  (c&e)32000-501-1-STP

APPLICATION DATE:PAY APPLICATION NO.

1 of 6



APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT

 1

Recommendation for Payments were issued and payments received from the Owner, and that the current payment 

shown herein is now due.

CONTRACTOR: C3 Constructors, LLC

By: Date:

ENGINEER: Vogler & Spencer Engineering, Inc.

By: Date:

Change Order Summary:

Contract Time Schedule:

Original Contract Time 420 30

Previous Approved Time Extensions

Requested and Approved Time Extensions This Period

420 30

Previous Contract Days 0 0

Contract Days This Period 64 0

64 0

Special Notes/Considerations:

Total Contract Days To Date 

Job progress is satisfactory and the work appears to be in compliance with plans and specifications.  In accordance 

with the Contract, the undersigned recommends payment to the Contractor of the amount due as shown above.

The undersigned Contractor certifies that the work covered by this Application for Payment has been completed in 

accordance with the Contract Document, that all amounts have been paid by him for work for which previous 

-$                             

Total Contract Calendar Days and Approved Time Extensions

Substantial 

Completion

Final 

Completion

APPLICATION DATE: 8/16/2024PAY APPLICATION NO.

VSE PROJECT NO.: 32000-501-1-STP  (c&e)

2 of 6

8/16/2024

R

EENIGNE LANOI
S

S

DESNEC
I

L

131437

020

8/19/2024



WK. DONE WK. DONE WK. % CONT.

THIS PREVIOUS DONE COM- UNIT

UNIT QTY ESTIMATE ESTIMATE TO DATE PLETE PRICE AMOUNT

GENERAL ITEMS

1. Mobilization, including all 

Bonds. Insurance and Permits 

(Maximum amount not to 

exceed 3% of the Base Bid 

amount).

LS 1 1 0 1 100% $44,000.00 $44,000.00

General Item Sub-Total $44,000.00

CIVIL WORK ITEMS

1. Install 12" Gate Valves on each 

Influent Line at headworks, 

Complete in place per plans. 

Includes modification to piping 

to fit valves

EA 3 0 0 0% $8,000.00 $0.00

2. Remove and Replace Corroded 

Handrail Sections throughout 

plant

LS 1 0 0 0% $27,000.00 $0.00

3. Cut out 2'x2' opening in aeration 

basin dividing wall within 

treatment unit no. 1 per plans

LS 1 0 0 0% $3,000.00 $0.00

4. Install handrail around treatment 

unit no. 1 clarifier complete in 

place. Includes all appurtenances 

and modifications to existing 

walkway. 

LS 1 0 0 0% $24,000.00 $0.00

5. Remove and replace clarifier 

wier trough within treatment 

unit no. 1

LS 1 0 0 0% $50,000.00 $0.00

6. Remove and replace aeration 

basin RAS lift pump

LS 1 0 0 0% $13,000.00 $0.00

7. Remove and replace RAS/WAS 

PVC discharge pump with 

Ductile iron pipe. Includes all 

appurtenances and fittings.

LS 1 0 0 0% $6,000.00 $0.00

APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT

ITEM

8/16/2024

VSE PROJECT NO.: 32000-501-1-STP  (c&e)

APPLICATION DATE:PAY APPLICATION NO. 1

3 of 6



WK. DONE WK. DONE WK. % CONT.

THIS PREVIOUS DONE COM- UNIT

UNIT QTY ESTIMATE ESTIMATE TO DATE PLETE PRICE AMOUNT

APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT

ITEM

8/16/2024

VSE PROJECT NO.: 32000-501-1-STP  (c&e)

APPLICATION DATE:PAY APPLICATION NO. 1

8. Recoat existing process air 

piping header within headworks 

and treatment unit no. 1

LS 1 0 0 0% $34,000.00 $0.00

9. Recoat existing walkway and 

hand rails throughout plant

LS 1 0 0 0% $40,000.00 $0.00

10. Drain, clean and disinfect 

existing digester basins

LS 1 0 0 0% $35,000.00 $0.00

11. Raise existing scum box tray on 

final clarifier

LS 1 0 0 0% $8,000.00 $0.00

12. Repair access stairway and 

landing

LS 1 0 0 0% $21,000.00 $0.00

13. Provide and maintain bypass 

pumping

LS 1 0 0 0% $23,000.00 $0.00

Civil Work Items Sub-Total $0.00

ELECTRICAL WORK ITEMS

1.

1.01 Install Underground Conduit LS 1 0.5 0 0.5 50% $122,500.00 $61,250.00

1.02 Concrete Electrical Pull Box LS 1 0.5 0 0.5 50% $40,000.00 $20,000.00

1.03 Above Ground Conduit LS 1 0 0 0% $50,000.00 $0.00

1.04 Site Junction Boxes LS 1 0 0 0% $22,500.00 $0.00

1.05 Install Service Rack LS 1 0 0 0% $50,000.00 $0.00

1.06 Service Rack Equipment 

Installation

LS 1 0 0 0% $70,000.00 $0.00

1.07 Equipment Room / Site Lighting LS 1 0 0 0% $25,000.00 $0.00

1.08 Float & Transducer Installation LS 1 0 0 0% $20,000.00 $0.00

1.09 Combo Starter Installation LS 1 0 0 0% $60,000.00 $0.00

1.10 Temporary Power LS 1 0 0 0% $35,000.00 $0.00

Provide and install electrical equipment 

including, but not limited to, main breaker, 

service rack, distribution panel, combination 

motor starters, lighting transformer, lighting 

panel, automatic transfer switch, service 

structure, generator, lift station control panel, 

pump terminal boxes, conduit, conduit 

penetrations into lift station wet well,  wire, and 

all ancillary devices as shown on construction 

drawings, complete in place. 

4 of 6



WK. DONE WK. DONE WK. % CONT.

THIS PREVIOUS DONE COM- UNIT

UNIT QTY ESTIMATE ESTIMATE TO DATE PLETE PRICE AMOUNT

APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT

ITEM

8/16/2024

VSE PROJECT NO.: 32000-501-1-STP  (c&e)

APPLICATION DATE:PAY APPLICATION NO. 1

1.11 New MCC Panel Board / 

Equipment Installation

LS 1 0 0 0% $100,000.00 $0.00

1.12 Power Conductor Installation LS 1 0 0 0% $81,000.00 $0.00

1.13 Control Conductor Installation LS 1 0 0 0% $68,000.00 $0.00

1.14 Testing & Start Up LS 1 0 0 0% $5,000.00 $0.00

1.15 Excavate & Shape Berm for 

Generator Pad

LS 1 0 0 0% $20,000.00 $0.00

1.16 Excavate, Form, & Pour 

Generator Pad

LS 1 0 0 0% $45,000.00 $0.00

1.17 Install Generator & Platform LS 1 0 0 0% $200,000.00 $0.00

1.18 Backfill & Regrade Around 

Generator

LS 1 0 0 0% $10,000.00 $0.00

1.19 Install ATS LS 1 0 0 0% $30,000.00 $0.00

1.20 Saw Cut & Replace Paving as 

Necessary

LS 1 0.2 0 0.2 20% $25,000.00 $5,000.00

2. Demolish and remove existing 

MCC equipment, control panels, 

and electrical equipment as 

shown on construction drawings, 

complete as specified

LS 1 0 0 0% $9,000.00 $0.00

3. Allowance for electric utility to 

transfer pad mounted 

transformer service to new 

service rack; exact mount will be 

reimbursed to Contractor upon 

submittal of invoice from Utility 

Service Providers

LS 1 0 0 0% $5,000.00 $0.00

4. Allowance for coordination and 

Arc Flash Hazard Analysis per 

Section 16015, Complete by 

Baird, Gilroy & Dixon, LLC.

LS 1 0 0 0% $20,000.00 $0.00

Electrical Work Items Sub-Total $86,250.00

5 of 6



WK. DONE WK. DONE WK. % CONT.

THIS PREVIOUS DONE COM- UNIT

UNIT QTY ESTIMATE ESTIMATE TO DATE PLETE PRICE AMOUNT

APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT

ITEM

8/16/2024

VSE PROJECT NO.: 32000-501-1-STP  (c&e)

APPLICATION DATE:PAY APPLICATION NO. 1

SUPPLEMENTAL ITEMS - WHEN AUTHORIZED BY THE ENGINEER

1. Remove and replace 1" air drops 

including butterfly valves and 

coarse bubbler

EA 10 0 0 0% $1,700.00 $0.00

2. Remove and replace air drop 

butterfly valve

EA 20 0 0 0% $400.00 $0.00

Supplemental Items Sub-Total $0.00

ALTERNATE BID ITEMS

A1 Remove and replace four (4) 

existing light fixtures inside 

electrical blower room with type 

“A” fixtures or approved equal 

and remove and replace one (1) 

fixture in lift station drypit with 

Lithonia OLVTWM wall mount 

LED fixture or approved equal, 

complete in place.

LS 1 0 0 0% $5,000.00 $0.00

Total Alternate Items $0.00

Total Work Completed to Date $130,250.00

6 of 6



◄
◄
◄

1.
2.
3.
4.
5. State:

a. 10% Subscribed & sworn to before me

b. 10% this

6.

7.

8.

9.

Commission Expiration Date:

County

day of

Notary Public Name:

- 

117,225.00                TOTAL COMPLETED LESS RETAINAGE:

117,225.00                

1,377,775.00             

- 

CONTRACTOR:1,495,000.00             

1,495,000.00             

-                             

-

DELETIONS

13,025.00                  
of Stored Material -                             

- 
Changes From This Application:
Changes From Prev Applications:

-                             

Net Changes:

Total Retainage:

LESS PREVIOUS APPLICATIONS:

13,025.00                  

Total:

ADDITIONS

CURRENT PAYMENT DUE:

BALANCE TO FINISH INCLUDING RETAINAGE:

EXTRA WORK SUMMARY

ENGINEER:

DISTRIBUTION:

APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT

777 North Eldridge Parkway 500
Houston, TX 77079

Refer to continuation sheets attached for detailed breakdown.

From: 

The Contractor declares that to the best of his knowledge, information and belief the Work covered by this 
Application for Payment has been completed in accordance with the Contract Documents, that all amounts 
have been paid to him for Work for which previous Certificates for Payment were issued and payments 
received from the Owner, and that current payment shown herein is now due.

CONTRACTOR'S CERTIFICATION:

502 W. Montgomery #515

Vogler & Spencer Engineering 32000-501-1-STP (c&e)

Jay Newberry

8/20/2024PERIOD ENDING:

DATE:

8.7%

ORIGINAL CONTRACT AMOUNT:
NET CHANGES TO CONTRACT:
TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT:
TOTAL COMPLETED AND STORED TO DATE:

River Plantation MUD WWTP Rehab

130,250.00                

- 

Project: 

- - 

1APPLICATION NUMBER:

APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT - SUMMARY

PERCENT COMPLETE

Willis, Tx 77378 PREPARED BY:

C3 Constructors, LLC

RETAINAGE:
of Completed Work

CONTRACTOR
File



Subcontractor's signed Certication is attached.  
In tabulations below, amounts are stated to the nearest dollar. Percent of retainage Held 10%
Use Column I on Contracts where variable retainage for line items apply.  

A B C D E F G H I
TOTAL COMPLETED

ITEM DESCRIPTION OF WORK SCHEDULED PREVIOUS AND STORED % BALANCE RETAINAGE

NO. VALUE APPLICATION Work in Place     Stored Materials TO DATE Complete TO FINISH WITHHELD

(D+E) this period (not in D or E) (D+E+F) (G/C) (C-G) (G*J4)
BASE CONTRACT  

G1 Mobilization / Bonds / Insurance 44,000.00 44,000.00 44,000.00 100% 0.00 4,400.00

C1 Install 12" Gate Valves @ Headworks 24,000.00 0.00 0% 24,000.00 0.00
C2 Remove & Replace Corroded Handrials 27,000.00 0.00 0% 27,000.00 0.00
C3 Cut 2' x 2' Opening in A-Basin Wall 3,000.00 0.00 0% 3,000.00 0.00
C4 Install Handrail @ Treatment Unit 1 24,000.00 0.00 0% 24,000.00 0.00
C5 Replace Clarifier Wier Trough @ Unit 1 50,000.00 0.00 0% 50,000.00 0.00
C6 Replace A-Basin RAS Lift Pump 13,000.00 0.00 0% 13,000.00 0.00
C7 Replace PVC with DI @ RAS/WAS Discharge 6,000.00 0.00 0% 6,000.00 0.00
C8 Recoat Air Headers @ Headworks & Unit 1 34,000.00 0.00 0% 34,000.00 0.00
C9 Recoat Walkays and Hand Rails in Plant 40,000.00 0.00 0% 40,000.00 0.00
C10 Drain & Clean Digesters 35,000.00 0.00 0% 35,000.00 0.00
C11 Raise Scum Tray on Final Clarifier 8,000.00 0.00 0% 8,000.00 0.00
C12 Repair stairway and landing 21,000.00 0.00 0% 21,000.00 0.00
C13 Bypass Pumping 23,000.00 0.00 0% 23,000.00 0.00

E1.1 Install Underground Conduit 122,500.00 61,250.00 61,250.00 50% 61,250.00 6,125.00
E1.2 Concrete Electrical Pull Box 40,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 50% 20,000.00 2,000.00
E1.3 Above Ground Conduit 50,000.00 0.00 0% 50,000.00 0.00
E1.4 Site Junction Boxes 22,500.00 0.00 0% 22,500.00 0.00
E1.5 Install Service Rack 50,000.00 0.00 0% 50,000.00 0.00
E1.6 Service Rack Equipment Installation 70,000.00 0.00 0% 70,000.00 0.00
E1.7 Equipment Room / Site Lighting 25,000.00 0.00 0% 25,000.00 0.00
E1.8 Float & Transducer Installation 20,000.00 0.00 0% 20,000.00 0.00
E1.9 Combo Starter Installation 60,000.00 0.00 0% 60,000.00 0.00
E1.10 Temporary Power 35,000.00 0.00 0% 35,000.00 0.00
E1.11 New MCC Panel Board / Equipment Installation 100,000.00 0.00 0% 100,000.00 0.00
E1.12 Power Conductor Installation 81,000.00 0.00 0% 81,000.00 0.00
E1.13 Control Conductor Installation 68,000.00 0.00 0% 68,000.00 0.00
E1.14 Testing & Start Up 5,000.00 0.00 0% 5,000.00 0.00
E1.15 Excavate and Shape Berm for Generator Pad 20,000.00 0.00 0% 20,000.00 0.00
E1.16 Excavate, Form, & Pour Generator Pad 45,000.00 0.00 0% 45,000.00 0.00
E1.17 Install Generator & Platform 200,000.00 0.00 0% 200,000.00 0.00
E1.18 Backfill and Regrade Around Generator Pad 10,000.00 0.00 0% 10,000.00 0.00
E1.19 Install ATS 30,000.00 0.00 0% 30,000.00 0.00
E1.20 Saw Cut and Replace Paving as Necessary 25,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 20% 20,000.00 500.00

E2 Electrical Demo 9,000.00 0.00 0% 9,000.00 0.00
E3 Pad Mounted Transformer Allowance 5,000.00 0.00 0% 5,000.00 0.00
E4 Arc Flash Hazard Analysis Allowance 20,000.00 0.00 0% 20,000.00 0.00

S1 Remove and Replace 10 Air Drops 17,000.00 0.00 0% 17,000.00 0.00
S2 Remove & Replace Air Drop Butterfly Valves 8,000.00 0.00 0% 8,000.00 0.00

A1 Replace 4 light fixtures in Electrical Building 5,000.00 0.00 0% 5,000.00 0.00

BASE CONTRACT TOTALS 1,495,000.00$   -$         130,250.00$  -$               130,250.00$  9% 1,364,750.00$   13,025.00$    

CHANGE ORDERS

CHANGE ORDER TOTALS -$                   -$         -$               -$               -$               -$                   -$              

 PROJECT  TOTALS 1,495,000.00$   -$         130,250.00$  -$               130,250.00$  9% 1,364,750.00$   13,025.00$    

WORK COMPLETED

This Application

CONTINUATION SHEET







CHANGE ORDER

NO. 1

 

DATE OF ISSUANCE: EFFECTIVE DATE:

OWNER:

CONTRACTOR:

PROJECT:

OWNER'S CONTRACT NO.: ENGINEER'S CONTRACT NO.:

ENGINEER:

You are directed to make the following changes in the Contract Documents:

Description:  

Reason for Change Order:  

Attachments: (List documents supporting change)

Original Contract Price Original Contract Time:

  Substantial Completion:

  Ready for Final Payment:

(days or dates)

Net Increase (Decrease) from previous Change Orders Net Change from previous Change Orders No. _____ to _____:

No. _____ to _____:   Substantial Completion:
  Ready for Final Payment

(days or dates)

Contract Price prior to this Change Order: Contract Time Prior to this Change Order:

  Substantial Completion:

  Ready for Final Payment:

(days or dates)

Net Increase (Decrease) of this Change Order: Net Increase (Decrease) of this Change Order:

  Substantial Completion:

  Ready for Final Payment:

(days or dates)

Contract Price with all approved Change Orders: Contract Time with all approved Change Orders:

   Substantial Completion:

  Ready for Final Payment:
(days or dates)

RECOMMENDED: By: Date:

APPROVED: By: Date:

ACCEPTED: By: Date:

 

420 days

30 days

420 days

30 days

CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE CHANGE IN CONTRACT TIMES

Vogler & Spencer Engineering, Inc.

 32000-501-1-STP (c&e)

Addition to Work Scope of a brand-new engineered metal building with concrete foundation and complete build out.  Price 

includes all materials, labor, equipment, supervision, tools, and taxes to complete the scope of work. For clarity and understanding, 

general specifications are included in Attachment 1. 

- Attachment 1: General Specifications, Clarifications & Exclusions. 

- Attachment 2: Additional cost for C3 Constructors coordination, managament and bond fees. 

August 20, 2024August 20, 2024

River Plantation Municipal Utility District

C3 Constructors, LLC

0.6 MGD Wastewater Treatment Facility Rehabilitation within River Plantation Municipal Utility District 

Original Lab Building on site was damaged in Hurricane Beryl. 

C3 Constructors, LLC

Vogler & Spencer Engineering, Inc.

River Plantation Municipal Utility District

420 days

-$                       

1,495,000.00$       

1,530,780.00$       

30 days

35,780.00$            

1,495,000.00$       

8/20/2024



CHANGE ORDER NO. 1

TO:

FROM:

DATE:

PROJECT:

PROJECT NO:

The following items have been adjusted to your contract for the referenced project:

    

 Item 

No.
Unit

Prev. 

Qty.
New Qty. Unit Price Amount

$0.00

$0.00

The following items have been added to your contract for the referenced project:

 Item 

No.
Qty. Unit Price Amount

CO1-1 1 $22,994.40 $22,994.40

CO1-2 1 $4,750.20 $4,750.20

CO1-3 1 $3,900.00 $3,900.00

CO1-4 1 $4,135.40 $4,135.40

$35,780.00

$35,780.00

Sub-Total for Added Items

Description

TOTAL CHANGE TO CONTRACT

Building & Foundation

Finishes

General Conditions & Equipment

LS

LS

LS

Unit

C3 Constructors' Coordination, Management and 

Bonds
LS

SUMMARY 

C3 Constructors, LLC

River Plantation Municipal Utility District

0.6 MGD Wastewater Treatment Facility Rehabilitation within River Plantation Municipal Utility District 

August 20, 2024

Sub-Total for Adjusted Items

32000-501-1-STP (c&e)

Description

Page 2



P a g e  1 | 5 
 

 
 

 

 

07, 22, 2024 

C3 Constructors 

Contact: jnewberry@c3constructors.com 

 

 

Project ID:  River Plantation 0.6 MGD Treatment Rehabilitation Facility Ph.1 

 

Mr. Newberry: 
 

Thank you for the opportunity to submit a quote for the project referenced above.  

 

Cobia’s price includes all materials, labor, equipment, supervision, tools, and taxes to 

complete the scope of work. For clarity and understanding, we have listed below general 

specifications:  
 

18 x 20 Steel Building Insulated 

18 x 20 Steel building 9’: 
 

- 4” slab 1’ perimeter footing 

-  Roof Color: Evergreen 

- Trim Color: Evergreen 

- Side and End Color: Clay 

- Screws: Silver Galvanized 

- Sheeting: Certified 150 mph. 

- 35 psf. 

- 12 ga. tubing - 29 ga. sheeting  

- 9’ leg height fully enclosed 

- 18’ x 20’ horizontal sides 

- Insulation: 3” vinyl woven R 17 

 

                                                           

DOORS and WINDOWS 

 
Door and windows installed on right side 
 
Exterior Door: 36” x 80” qty. 1 
Windows: 30” x 30” qty. 2 
Interior Door: 36” x 80” 
 
 

COBIA Construction and Design  
1635 Haidlyn’s Way   
Sour Lake Texas 77659  
Joel.wagstaff@outlook.com  
713-725-2164  

ATTACHMENT 1



P a g e  2 | 5 

ELECTRICAL and FINISHES 

ELECTRICAL: 

Re-use existing power supply and distribute to: 

- 4 - 2 x 4 suspended light fixtures

- 5 – 120v outlets

- Re-install existing package A.C. unit

- Re-install existing water heater

FINISHES: 

Provide finished lab and office area with 6’cabinets with countertop and sink 

Provide 8’ x 8’ restroom, including 3’ x 7’ door, with shower and sink 

- Cabinets – 3 – 36” x 24” x 34.5” Hampton Bay unfinished, sealed, 2 door KSB36UF

- Countertops – 1 – 6’L x 25.5” D x 4.375”H Wilsonart laminate, white, Typhoon Ice

1 – 4’L x 25.5” D x 4.375”H Wilsonart laminate, white, Typhoon Ice 

#495252V6 

- Shower -  1 – 32” x 32” x 74.35” Durastall smooth finish, white, caulk less, with drain and
fixtures #3068

- Provide and install new HEF toilet 1.6 GPF

- Sinks – Lab: 25” x 22” x 6” 22ga. stainless steel - Glacier Bay #HDSB252264

    Bathroom: 15” x 15” 20ga. stainless steel – Elkay 

- Flooring – Seal all concrete with semi-gloss, clear, urethane floor coating

Building and Foundation $ 22,994.40 

Finishes  $  4750.20 

General Conditions & Equipment $  3,900.00 

Sub-Total $ 31,644.60 

Taxes (Material & Labor 8.25%) $           .00 

TOTAL PROPOSAL                    $  31,644.60 



P a g e  3 | 5 
 

 

 

PROJECT MANAGEMENT & SAFETY 

 

Cobia Construction will assign a project manager for the entire duration of the  

project and will provide labor and a field superintendent to complete the above  

specifications 

CLARIFICATIONS 

1. Pricing Valid for 30 days. 

2. Current Lead Time for materials is 10 weeks upon approved submittals  

3. Includes rental equipment  

4. All work to be performed during regular business hours, Monday through Friday. 

5. This proposal and any subsequent price for work in this proposal is subject to cost 

adjustment for any delays, disruptions, or price increases beyond Cobia 

Construction control (delayed start dates, Pandemic related mandates, unexpected 

facility shutdowns, etc.). 

6. This price does include demolition of existing structure 

 

EXCLUSIONS 

1. Any item not listed in base bid. 

2. Temporary barriers/enclosures. 

3. Permits and Bonds. 

4. Dumpsters. 

5. Tax 

 
Cobia Construction and Design LLC. sincerely appreciates the opportunity to bid on this 

project. We look forward to doing business with you. 

 

Joel Wagstaff 
(c) 713-725-2164 

 

 



P a g e  4 | 5 
 

 

 Front  Right  
  

  

 
  

 Back  Left  
  



P a g e  5 | 5 
 

  
  

  

  

Floor Plan  
  

 18 x 20 Vertical Roof Metal Building      

  
 



Main Sink: 33 in. x 22 in.
x 6.0625 in.

        N.T.S

* 4000 PSI Concrete Slab with 1' grade beam    
around.
* Concrete slab on grade 4" thick with No. 4      
re-bar 12" O/C

             Building Foundation 
Shower Location:  32 in.
x 32 in. x 75 in

Bath Room Sink:  25 in.
x 22 in. x 6.0625 in

Light

Receptacle

Windows: Two 30" x
30" Windows

LP

LP Lighting Panel

Building Interior Layout

S

S

             Bath Room Sink 

             Main Room Cabinets and Sink

Shower

Drain 

AC UNIT

S

S

S

Switch Disconnect 



1

Jennifer Boone

From: Taylor Reed

Sent: Tuesday, August 20, 2024 8:36 AM

To: Jennifer Boone

Cc: Andres Dillon

Subject: FW: River Plantation Lab Building 

Attachments: Sub Build.pdf; Cobia proposal - C3 Lab Office MOCO.pdf

Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Completed

Categories: Pay Apps/COs Approved

The board authorized moving forward with this as a change order. Will you please get this done today for my 

meeting Thursday. 

 

Thanks,  

 

Taylor Reed, P.E. 
Partner/Project Manager 
TBPE Firm No. F-148 
  
Vogler & Spencer Engineering, Inc. 
E: Treed@vs-eng.com 
P: 713.782.0042 | C: 832.374.4677 
777 N. Eldridge Pkwy, Ste 500, Houston, TX 77079 
W: www.vs-eng.com 

  

 
Top Workplace 2 years in a row - Houston Chronicle 
  

     

 

From: Jay Newberry <jnewberry@c3constructors.com>  

Sent: Monday, July 22, 2024 7:32 PM 

To: Taylor Reed <TReed@vs-eng.com> 

Cc: Jacob Rolen <jacob@c3constructors.com> 

Subject: River Plantation Lab Building  

 

Taylor, 

 

We played with the numbers for a built-out container, used construction o�ice trailer and this option. A brand-new 

engineered metal building with concrete foundation and complete build out.  

 

The turnkey price from COBIA Construction is $31,644.60 we would put the minimum markup on it, 10% profit and 

3% bonds and insurance making the total $35,780.00 

 

Thoughts? Would you like this in a formal change order from C3? 

 

ATTACHMENT 2



2

 

Thank you, 

 

     Jay Newberry 

Director Of Operations 

    346-616-4372 

      

 

From: Claude Martin <c.martin@principalcontrol.com>  

Sent: Monday, July 22, 2024 7:35 AM 

To: Jay Newberry <jnewberry@c3constructors.com> 

Subject: River Plantation Lab Building  

 

Jay,  

 

Please see attached and let me know what you think.  

 

Thanks.  

 

Claude Martin  

Project Manager  

Mobile (713) 533-2062  

 
 



Controlling
Name of Interested Party

4
Nature of interest

City, State, Country (place of business)
Intermediary

(check applicable)

CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES 1295FORM
1 of 1

1

OFFICE USE ONLY

2 08/20/2024

Complete Nos. 1 - 4 and 6 if there are interested parties.
Complete Nos. 1, 2, 3, 5, and 6 if there are no interested parties.

Name of business entity filing form, and the city, state and country of the business entity's place
of business.
C3 Constructors, LLC
Willis, TX United States
Name of governmental entity or state agency that is a party to the contract for which the form is
being filed.

Provide the identification number used by the governmental entity or state agency to track or identify the contract, and provide a
description of the services, goods, or other property to be provided under the contract.

3

River Plantation Municipal Utility District

0.60 MGD Wastewater Treatment Facility Rehabilitation - Change Order No. 1 - New Metal Lab Building With Concrete Foundation
and Interior Build-Out.

32000-501-1-STP (c&e)

2024-1203203

Date Filed:

Date Acknowledged:

Certificate Number:

CERTIFICATION OF FILING

6

Signature of authorized agent of contracting business entity

My name is _______________________________________________________________,

UNSWORN DECLARATION

Check only if there is NO Interested Party.5
X

My address is _______________________________________________, _______________________,

and my date of birth is _______________________.

Executed in ________________________________________County,

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

(street) (state) (zip code) (country)

(year)(month)

 _______, ______________, _________.

State of ________________, on the _____day of ___________, 20_____.

(city)

(Declarant)

Version V4.1.0.48da51f7www.ethics.state.tx.usForms provided by Texas Ethics Commission

Jay Newberry 1/19/1973

3331 Flanders Drive Porter TX 77365 USA

Montgomery Texas 20 August 24



Sections 1 - 3: Every Monday and Tuesday; 25 minutes per zone

Sections 4 - 6: Every Wednesday and Thursday; 25 minutes per zone

Sections 7 - 9: Every Friday and Saturday; 25 minutes per zone

       Red dots:  Broken heads         Blue line:   Broken Pipe

Charleston Park Watering Schedule

** We will be watering back to back days in order to get more water saturation into the soil



Site Visit:  7/19/2024

We have a follow up visit scheduled for 8/21/24 now that there is power. 

Repairs have been made and we did some hand watering.  We will send you a 

follow-up status report tomorrow after our onsite visit.



 

 1 

09402-002     582892.1 

RIVER PLANTATION MUNICIPAL UTLITY DISTRICT 
 

Resolution (1) Finding District to be Low Tax Rate, Developed, Developing, or Developed 
District in a Declared Disaster Area, (2) Calling Public Hearing on 2024 Tax Rate and 

(3) Authorizing Tax Assessor-Collector to Prepare and Publish Notice of the Public Hearing 

 
The board of directors (“Board”) of River Plantation Municipal Utility District 

(“District”) met on August 22, 2024, with a quorum of directors present, as follows: 

Julie Gilmer, President  
Timothy Goodman, Vice President 
Karl Sakocius, Secretary 
Thomas Vandever, Treasurer  
Mark V. Denham, Director 

  
and the following absent: 
 

 None 
   
when the following business was transacted: 

WHEREAS, before the Board adopts an annual ad valorem tax rate for the District, the 

Board is required to give notice pursuant to § 49.236 of the Texas Water Code (“Code”) of each 

meeting at which adoption of the tax rate will be considered (“Notice of Public Hearing”), and 

WHEREAS, the language required to be included in the Notice of Public Hearing varies 

based on whether the District is a low tax rate, developed or developing district, as those terms 

are described in §§ 49.23601, 49.23602, and 49.23603 of the Code, and therefore the Board must 

determine which of these types of districts the District is, and 

WHEREAS, the District must further determine as appropriate under §§ 49.23601, 

49.23602, or 49.23603 of the Code the voter-approval tax rate, mandatory tax election rate and 

unused increment rate and call a public hearing to consider a proposed tax rate for 2024.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of Directors of the District as follows: 



 

 2 

09402-002     582892.1 

I. 

All of the facts recited in the preamble of this Resolution are hereby found and declared 

to be true and correct. 

II. 

 For purposes of adopting an ad valorem District tax rate for 2024, the Board of Directors 

of the District hereby finds and determines that the District is the type of district as indicated 

below: 

 _____ Low Tax Rate District (Texas Water Code § 49.23601) 

__X__ Developing District (Texas Water Code § 49.23603) 

__ __ Developed District (Texas Water Code § 49.23602) 

_____ Developed District in a Declared Disaster Area (Texas Water Code §49.23602(d)) 
 

III. 

The District designates and directs its tax assessor-collector to prepare and calculate the 

voter-approval tax rate, mandatory tax election rate and unused increment rate as appropriate and 

required under §§ 49.23601, 49.23602, or 49.23603 of the Code according to the type of district 

the Board has determined the District to be. 

IV. 

The Board of Directors of the District hereby calls a public hearing to consider a 

proposed 2024 ad valorem tax rate at the Board’s special meeting on September 16, 2024 at 6:30 

p.m. at 610 River Plantation Drive, Conroe, Texas. 

V. 

 The District hereby authorizes and directs its tax assessor-collector to prepare a Notice of 

Public Hearing and include therein the appropriate language as required under § 49.236 of the 

Code according to the type of district the Board has found the District to be. The tax assessor-



 

 3 

09402-002     582892.1 

collector is further authorized and directed to publish the Notice of Public Hearing in the time 

and manner required by § 49.236 of the Code. 

VI.  

If the District is a Developed District in a Declared Disaster Area, the District directs its 

tax assessor-collector to calculate the District’s voter-approval tax rate under § 49.23601(a) of 

the Code and prepare and publish the Notice of Public Hearing under § 49.236 (a) (3) (A) of the 

Code. The District shall by separate action determine whether an election is required to approve 

the adopted tax rate in the manner provided under §49.23601 (c) of the Code. 

VII. 

The President or Vice President is authorized to execute and the Secretary, Assistant 

Secretary or Secretary Pro Tempore to attest this Resolution on behalf of the Board and the 

District, and to do any and all things appropriate or necessary to give effect to the intent hereof.  

      
      JULIE GILMER 

_______________________________________ 
President 

 
ATTEST: 
 
KARL SAKOCIUS 

____________________________ 

Secretary 



 

 4 

09402-002     582892.1 

 I, the undersigned Secretary of the Board of Directors of River Plantation 

Municipal Utility District, hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the 

Resolution adopted by said Board at its regular meeting of August 22, 2024, and a minute entry 

of that date showing the adoption thereof, the original of which resolution appears in the minute 

book of said Board, on file in the District’s office. 

I further certify that said meeting was open to the public, and that notice was 

given in compliance with the provisions of Tex. Gov’t. Code Ann. § 551.001 et seq.  

Witness my hand and the seal of said District, this August 22, 2024. 

 

 

_____________________________________ 
Secretary 

 



 

  

 

 

 

 

  

 

 
 

 
EXHIBIT A1 TO CONSULTING AGREEMENT:  
EMERGENCY ALERT SYSTEM  
 

RIVER PLANTATION MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT  
 
22 July 2024 
 

Touchstone District Services 
8118 Fry Rd 
Ste 703 
Cypress, Texas 77433 

P: 832-558-5714 
E: info@touchstonedistrictservices.com 

 

  



 
 

Exhibit A1: Emergency Alert System 
Touchstone District Services, LLC and River Plantation MUD 

Page 2 of 6 
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

Emergency Alerts 
 

Text and Email Notification System  
Being able to connect with residents directly and quickly through 
text and email is key in emergency situations. Touchstone 
developed the inTEN Plus+ District Alert System as a text and email 
notification system to supply districts with a direct line of 
communication to residents when time is of the essence.  
 

 
Additionally, the inTEN Plus+ District Alert System allows for sharing on social media by also having all 
District alert notices link to news posts on the District website. The online news posts provide more 
information than will fit in a single text, can display photos and diagrams to help communicate 
visually, and can show ongoing updated information at it happens.  
 

In this modern and technology driven age, there are many alert system options to choose from, but 
many are basic email alerts or are texts that will likely get blocked by spam blockers often used by 
cellular carriers such as Verizon and T-Mobile. The inTEN Plus+ District Alert System is more robust 
than such alert systems because it uses a short code (5-6 digit) telephone number since they are 
authorized by carriers for use in delivery en masse. Therefore, our emergency messages are not 
blocked or slowed down and can get through to residents quickly in an emergency.   
 
  



 
 

Exhibit A1: Emergency Alert System 
Touchstone District Services, LLC and River Plantation MUD 

Page 3 of 6 
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 
How It Works 
Step 1: System Setup 
The District’s operator supplies the list of phone numbers and matching addresses for residents in the 
district. This list is then integrated into the inTEN Plus+ District Alert System. Each residents’ contact 
information is then categorized by address to a neighborhood, zone, street, and house so that when 
broadcasting a message to residents, the message can be sent to the whole district, or drilled down 
to a neighborhood or street level notification. This allows for communication alerts and notices to go 
to those who need to receive it, and not just blanket all on every topic. This helps reduce confusion 
and build customer satisfaction.  
 
Step 2: Alerts Committee 
A Communication Alerts Committee should be set up to help expedite communications during an 
emergency situation. The committee usually consists of one or two directors, and a representative 
from legal, operations, engineering, and communications teams. This Committee is informed of any 
alert situations that may affect residents and approves any communications prior to being sent.  
 
Step 3: Registered Notification 
A message will be sent to all residents in the system informing them of the new alert system. Because 
text messages are cropped at 160 characters, not all of the relevant information can be sent in just a 
single text. Sending multiple texts is not recommended as they are often received out of order or not 
all are received. Therefore, all alerts sent via text or email include a short URL to a news post on the 
District’s website that provides the complete information and can also include photos or diagrams.  
 
For example, the initial text may read:  

River Plantation MUD residents: you have been registered to 
receive emergency alerts by the District.  For more info: 
https://tsds.link/Ju5l8kO To opt out text: STOP 

The short link will then lead residents to the alerts page on the 
District website with additional information about the system, 
how it works, when it will be used, a form for registering 
additional phone numbers, etc.  
 
Step 4: Situation Develops 
Once an alert situation develops, such as a line break, freeze warning, flooding, shutoff for 
maintenance, line flushing scheduled, etc., the operator informs the Communication Alerts 
Committee of the situation details. Our team then crafts the text message verbiage as well as drafts 
the post for the online alerts page and sends it to the Communication Alerts Committee for approval.  



 
 

Exhibit A1: Emergency Alert System 
Touchstone District Services, LLC and River Plantation MUD 

Page 4 of 6 
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 
Step 5: Send Alert 
Once the message is approved by the Communication Alerts Committee, the alert is sent out to 
residents via text and email. Residents can follow the short URL to get the full details of the situation. 
Sharing of the alert on social media such as Facebook or Nextdoor is also possible since the short URL 
goes directly to the alerts post helping to spread the message in the district.   
 
For example, the text alert may read:  

River Plantation MUD: Main water line break on Jubal Early 
Ln. Water Pressure low or off for some residents. Repairs 
expected done by 11pm. More info: ttps://tsds.link/iFlXn7 

This would then link to the alert news post on the District 
website with further details and explanations such as where the 
break is, whether the roadway is blocked, which residents are 
affected, when repairs are expected to be done, etc.   
 
Step 6: Update Alert 
If appropriate to the situation, an update alert can also be sent 
out to residents with new information about the situation. Steps 4 and 5 would be repeated as 
needed until the situation was resolved. Each new update would be posted on the same alert post on 
the website so that all residents are receiving the same information, and nobody is looking at 
outdated old posts.  
 
For example, an updated alert may read:  

River Plantation MUD: Main line break has been repaired. 
Water is back on. Boil water before consumption for next 
24 hours. For more info: https://tsds.link/iFlXn7 

The alert news post would include information such as why to boil 
the water, how you don’t have to boil water used for laundry, 
reminder to tell neighbors to sign up to receive future alerts, etc.  
 
 

 

Short Code Number 
The inTEN Plus+ District Alert System uses a short code (5-6 digit) telephone number and is capable of 
delivering to 6000 recipients per minute. Along with the increased delivery bandwidth, short-code 
numbers are authorized by carriers for use in delivery en masse. This helps ensure alert texts won’t 
be blocked by spam blockers often used by carriers such as Verizon and T-Mobile. 
 



 
 

Exhibit A1: Emergency Alert System 
Touchstone District Services, LLC and River Plantation MUD 

Page 5 of 6 
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 
How does “Targeted Texting” work? 
Each imported address with an associated number is a ‘dot’. We can use our system to draw a 
polygon around any number of dots; from the entire District down to a single address. This way, we 
can target only affected areas in the case of a bypass or work area impact, and not send to everyone 
in the District who might not be affected. From a single home, to a street, to a neighborhood, to a 
District boundaries, we can alert as many or as few District residents, as needed, during an 
emergency.  
 

 
 
Tracking 
Monthly reports sent to the Board would now include the tracking and usage statistics from the alert 
system. Statistics would include number of registered users, number of new registered users, number 
of views of the alert post, etc. 
 

 
Service Costs 
Standard costs for the inTEN system for resident text and email alerts is $950 setup and $200 per 
month for maintenance once system is launched. Time spent drafting alerts or corresponding on 
alerts will be billed hourly according to the Consulting Agreement. There are no additional fees for 
number of messages sent, there is no limit to the number of alerts sent per month or per year.  
 
 
 



 
 

Exhibit A1: Emergency Alert System 
Touchstone District Services, LLC and River Plantation MUD 

Page 6 of 6 
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Approval 
 

The District agrees to pay the setup and monthly hosting costs as detailed above to Touchstone 
District Services, LLC for the design, build, and hosting of a text and email alert system.  
 
The Effective Date of this Agreement is _____ of _____________________, 2024. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed and delivered this Exhibit A1 to the 
Consulting Agreement.   
 
 
DISTRICT: 
River Plantation Municipal Utility District 
 

By: ________________________________________                             
  Director, River Plantation MUD 
 
 
Printed Name: _______________________________   
 
Date: ___________________ 
 
 
 
TOUCHSTONE: 
Touchstone District Services, LLC 
 
 
By: ________________________________________                            
 Member, Touchstone District Services, LLC 
 
Printed Name:    Simon VanDyk                 . 
 
Simon VanDyk, Client Engagement Director 
E: s.vandyk@touchstonedistrictservices.com  
P: 832-558-5714 x 202 

mailto:s.vandyk@touchstonedistrictservices.com

	Insert from: "12 .Proposal for Emergency Alert System.pdf"
	Emergency Alerts

	Insert from: "08.22.2024.pdf"
	River Plantation MUD Operations Report
	River Plantation MUD

	Insert from: "2024-08-22 RP MUD Engineer Report.pdf"
	01 PA 32000-501-1-STP River Plantation MUD
	Change Order No. 1 - 32000-501-1-STP
	Charleston Park Watering Schedule and Update


